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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27M501 1-800-852-3343 Eit 4501

Fix: 603-271^7 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dbhs.Dh.gov

April 15, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hainpshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Bi-State Primary Care Association
{VC#166695), 525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH to continue providing Annual Interprofessional
Collaborative conferences, by increasing the price limitation by $118,581 from $200,580 to
$319,161 with no change to the contract completion dale of June 30. 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on
September 18, 2019, item #23. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-22160000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. CDC ORAL HEALTH GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Sen/ices

90080502 $66,580 $0 $66,580

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90080502 $67,000 $0 $67,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90080502 $67,000 $0 $67,000

Subtotal $200,580 $0 $200,580

The Dtparlmenl of Health and Human Strvicee'Mission is to join communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. /
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05-95-90-9021010-50400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, OPOID SURVEILLANCE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90050407 $0 $39,527 $39,527

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90050407 $0 $39,527 $39,527

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90050407 $0 $39,527 $39,527

Subtotal $0 $118,581 $118,581

Total $200,580 $118,581 $319,161

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the original contract was sole source as the vendor
is the only vendor able to provide the necessary services. Bi-State Primary Care Association (Bi-
State) hosts the annual Primary Care Conference and would be able to fully incorporate the Inter-
Professional Collaborative Conference into the planned agenda each year. The target population
includes primary care, oral health, and behavioral health professionals from Federally Qualified
Health Centers and Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas. The Department anticipates high
participation from health centers in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas and Federally
Qualified Health Centers including the six that have dental centers at this inter-professional
conference. This amendment will add to the existing scope of services by creating a training
scholarship for Federally Qualified Health Center providers to attend the conference. Providers
will receive training and assistance with Prescription Drug Monitoring Program reports, and by
amending this contract the Department will reduce duplication of efforts while having a broader
impact. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on
September 18, 2019, Item #23.

The purpose of the Inter-Professional Collatiorative Conference is to promote inter
professional collaboration, patient-centered care, and provider knowledge and awareness of the
impact of certain dental conditions, including opioid use in dental procedures, on overall health.
The Department seeks to increase provider knowledge of the most current opioid prescribing
guidelines, non-opioid pain management options, and best practice screening guidelines for
opioid addiction. Previously a lack of knowledge amongst providers on the relative risks and
beneFits of prescribing opioids for the management of acute and chronic pain has contributed
unfavorably to New Hampshire's opioid epidemic.
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The Contractor will design, plan, coordinate, and Implement an Annual Inter-Professional
Colialxjrative Conference. Through the Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative Conferences, the
Contractor will increase the knowledge of healthcare professionals in Dental Health Professional
Shortage Areas regarding how to provide integrated and comprehensive care to people who are
at risk for, or have substance use disorders. The Department anticipates that improving
integrated and comprehensive care for those at risk for substance use disorder will reduce the
number of people newly diagnosed with substance use disorder. Improving the coordination of
care between healthcare professionals of differing specialties for patients already diagnosed with
substance use disorder r^uces costs and improves long-term patient outcomes.

The Contractor will ensure each Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative Conference Is

available to approximately fifty (50) health professionals, statewide.

Bi-State's current membership includes the majority of the target audience for the Inter-
Professional Collaborative Conference, which places them in an advantageous position to
achieve maximum attendance. Additionally, Bi-State was named in the Department's Health
Resources and Services Administration grant application titled; "Strengthen Oral Health
Wortdorce Capacity to Prevent and Control Opioid Abuse in New Hampshire" to run a pre-
conference workshop on inter-professional collaboration to address the overuse of opioids in
dental procedures.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

• The Contractor shall ensure individuals report an increase in knowledge post
conference.

•  The Contractor shall ensure 100% of eligible providers in attendance receive
continuing education credits upon completion of the conference.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the current lack of
collaborative knowledge between medical, dental and behavioral health professionals may lead
to delay in care, disease progression and an increase in healthcare expenses.

Area sen/ed: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. US Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action
Program (NH 0D2A). CFD/^ 93.136, FAIN# NU17CE924984

Respectfully submitted.

Ann H. Landry



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Conference for Interprofessionals Contract

This Amendment to the Conference for Interprofessionals contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Bi-Slate Primary Care Association.
Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 525
Clinton Street, Bow. NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019. (Item #23). the Contractor agreed to perform cerlain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and
WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$319,161.

2. Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.1 to read:

The Contractor shall facilitate a total of three (3) two-day Annual Interprofessional Collaborative
Conferences (AlCC) on the day preceding or following the Bi-State annual Primary Care
Conference in May of each year of the contract.

3. Exhibit A. Scope of Services, to add Subsection 2.13:

2.13 The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) breakout session, as referenced in
Subsection 2.5.3.1. to participants in order to provide specialized training to address matters
that occur for Individuals who are at risk for of currently experiencing substance use disorder
that may include, but is not limited to:

2.13.1. Registration as a prescriber delegate in the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program
(POMP).

2.13.2. Accessing the POMP for the purposes of retrieving patient reports.

2.13.3. Interpreting POMP patient reports for risk of SUD.

2.13.4. Documenting risk of SUD for prescribers at the lime of the patient's appointment.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, to add Subsection 2.14:

2.14 The Contractor shall provide a minimum of one (1) breakout session, as referenced in
Subsection 2.5.3.1. to participants that addresses the utilization of various PDMP reports
for dental and medical professionals to inform opioid prescribing practices, that may include
but Is not limited to: ^

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. AmendmonlOl Contraaor Initials
SS-2019-DPHS-24.CONFE Page lot5 . . Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

2.14.1 Accessing the POMP enhanced prescriber report.

2.14.2 interpreting the POMP enhanced prescriber reports to inform opioid prescribing.

2.14.3 Accessing the POMP enhanced prescriber reports to Inform opioid prescribing.

2.14.4 interpreting f=>OMP patient reports for rtsK of SUD.

2.14.5 Prescriber delegate roles, privileges and limitations.

2.14.6 Discussing SUDwlh at risk patients.

2.14.7 SUD treatment roscurcos currently available

5. Exhibit A. Scope of Services, to add Subsection 2.15:

2.15 The Contractor shaB provide a minimum of one (1) breakout session, as referenced in
Subsection 2.5.3.1. to front-end staff in Older to provide specialized training to address
matters that occur for individuals who are at the initial contact with Individuals dealing with
an opiate disorder.

6. Exhibil 8. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 2. to read;

2. This Agreement Is funded with 100% Federal Funds from the following:

2.1 US Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources arid Services
Administration (HRSA). Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities.
CFDA #93.236, Federal Award Identificalion Number (FAIN). T12HP31859.

2.2 Department of Health arid Human Services/Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs
CFDA #93.136. Federal Award Identificalion Numlier (FAIN), NU17CE924984.

7. Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4. to read:

4. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements, which Includes a minimum in-kind match amount of 536.850 annually.
The Contractor shall:

4.1 Ensure the annual $36,850 required match is in non-federal contributions either in case
or In-kind related to directly carrying out Health Resources and Services Administration
(HRSA) project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and t>e
approved by the Department.

4.2 Provide an annual report of ilemized matching funds in accordance with the Code of
Federal Regulations. 45 CFR Part 75.306 no later than June 15* annually.

8. Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 5. to read:

5. Payment for said services shall be made on a monthly basis as follows:

5.1 Parent shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfinment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with Ihe approved budget line
items in Exhibit 61 Amendment #1. Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1. and Exhibit B-3
Amendment #1.

5.2 The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth
(20*) working day of each month, which identifies and request.^ reimt>ursdment for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment. ^

et-Stale PrimBty Care Aasociation, Inc Ameixlcnenl 41 ConUadoi liatiata

SS-201S-OPHS-24-CONFe PageZdS Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

5.4, The Slate shall make payment lo the Contractof wilhin Ihkly (30) days o( receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available.

9. Modify Exhibit 8-1 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-1 Amendment at,
incorporated by reference and attached herein.

10. Modify Exhibit B-2 by deleting It in its entirety and replacing It with Exhibit 8-2 Amendment #1.
incorporated by reference and attached herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B-3 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1.
incorporated by reference and attached herein.

Bi-SiaH Pfim»y Caf« As$oeiat«oo. Inc. AmanOmani Conwaoor Imttab
SS-20l9-OPHS-24-CONFe Papa 3 ot 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

This amendment shall t>e effecb've upon the date o( Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Nam

Title

Date '

7-0

8i-Stale Primary Care Association. Inc.

Na^e^ J-
J  t

, before the

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of riCt-^tC^fPT County on
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly atwve. or satisfactorily proven to
t>e the persi^h whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity tnd«atdd abovd.apacity tnd«ated abovd.

Signalize of Rotary Puisiic or Justice of the Peace

bft'v'cic
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ^ l 1 2S^Q\

Che//

C«mni*t^
lft}XNQa}iM*Ne.

Bi-State Pnmory C«f« Astoctation. inc

SS-201d-OPHS-24-COHFE

Amandmemai

Page 4 of 5



Ntw H«mp»hirt D«p<rtment of Hoslth and Human Sarvicaa
Confaranco lor Intarprofeaalonala

The praceding Amendment, having been reviewed by thie office, b approved os to form, aubetance. and
exeeutlon.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

NsDale

I hcre^'carlify. lhal the forgoing Arnendmeiit approved by the Governor and Execullve CourKil ol
ttio State of New Hompshjro.at the fiitoeting on; (date of meetirtg)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Prn>««y Cm Awociaiion. bic

55?Ot9-OPHS-24<;ONFE

AmmMnanl a I

PaOtSoTS
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE
ASSOCIATION. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January

31. 1986. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 86710

Certificate Number: 0004855541

QBf

ta.

O
6^

A

Til

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 24th day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)
do hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Member of _Bi-Stale Primary Care Association.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Memtwrs of

tfie Agency duly held on 3/23/2020^
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the VP. Policy and Strategy,
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter Into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 24_day of March 2020

(Date Contract Signed)

4. _Georgia J. Maheras.
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF-' /I

County of

is the duly elected _VP. Policy and Strategy
(Title of Contract Signatory)

iignature bf the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was^acknov^rtedged before me this day of

\ (Name of Elected OffiC^f the Agency)

>  'ypJAj/iiA /
^-^(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(MOIARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: !

NH OHHS. Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provklar Relatiooship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1. 2005



AdORD'

BISTATE-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JTHAMM

DATE iiiwoorrrrn

1/13/2020

THIS CERTtPICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER TOIS
SpTlFfcATC MES NOT NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate bolder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(tes) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisloiw or ̂
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions ol the policy, certain policies may require an endoraemenL Astatamenton
»ui. n/u rr«»f<»r Hnht« to the certlflcato holder in llou of tuch endorsement(a)-

PRODUCER License #A6R8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

(603) 622-2855 1 No,=(603) 622-2854
ithammfittlarkinsurance.com '

INSURemStAFFORWNQ COVERAQE NAICE

INSURER a: citizens Ins Co of America 31634

MSUREO

Bl State Primary Care Association
- 525 Clinton 31
Bow, NH 03304

imiiwFR R' M^novRT AniRrlcRn 36064

Indemnltv Comoanv

INSURER P :

ic" ̂ rt^/»coTicv TUAT TUP POi lir'iV^'(^"^NSURANC^LISTED BELOWHAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
Kixp^n ̂ n5J1KhS^NDING ̂  REQUIrS^TERM W ^Y CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THISE So by the polio,ES^DESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

POLICY EXP
INSA
JJB.

TVK or msuRANce
AOOU
jAsa

COMMEROAL OSNCRAL UABIUTY

\ OMUS-UASX I X I OCCUR

QgWL AGGRgQATE UMIT APPLIES PER;

TIpoucyQJSB □log
OTKR:

AUTOMOea.E UADIUTY

ANY AUTO
OVUNEO
AUTOS ONLY

mONLY

UMSRCLLALIAB

EXCESS UAB

OED

SOCOULEO
AUTOS

OCCUR

CLAiMS-MAOE

RETENTION t

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND employers; UABAJTY
ANY PR0PfU6T0ft/PARTNER«(ECUT[VE

I, dMcnbttunCsr
IPTIQN OP OPERATIONS below

IItM. CM

SUBR

Prof LUbllllity
Prof LUblllty

OBVA340840

OBVA340840

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

mwoarrrrti

OBVA340840

WKVA340821

LHR78874S

LHR768745

iMWDDmrrti

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

3/28/2019

3/28n019

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

LMTS

EACH OCCURRENCE
TO RENTED
SfPiflcoifTie^l

MEDEXPlAwonapertonl

PERSONAL 4 ADVIMkJRY

GENERM AGGREGATE

PRb0UCTS-C0UPA3PAGQ

CpMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT

1,000,000
500,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

LESdMOIL

BODILY INJURY (P«f twfsool

eOOILY INJURY iPf •CCl<lentl

EACH OCCURRENCE

7/1/2020

3/28/2020

3/28/2020

AGGREGATE

X ?I?T OTH
ER

EL EACHACCIDEHT

EL aSEASE.EAEMPLOYEE

EL DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

Per Claim

Aggregate

1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

500,000
500,000
500,000

1,000,000
3.000,000

DESCRmtlON OF OPBRA-nONS I LOCATIONS IVEWCLES (ACORD1P1, AddlUoMi R«iMrtc» Scl»*C«A«, n«Y bt ttMeh^d M mow tpte* H fWlr»<l
Cyb«r Liability etfBcUvB 12/29/2019 -12/29/2020
Carrier CFC Underwriting LimltBd
Policy »:ESI058399256
$3,000,000 each and every cl8lm/$3,000,000 Aggregate

Cf RTIFICATE HOLDER

NH DHHS

CANCfcLt-AIION —j

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESC/UBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTXORIZEO'REPRESENTATIVe

ACORD 25(2016/03) ® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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BiST/VTE PRiinun'CAREAssocwnoN

Sfjiving Vermont & New Hampshire

SSelect Page... v ̂

About Bi-State Primary Care Association

(I ntdn •♦IjOl
.VId I .

Vision
Healthy individuals and coinmunitleswith quality health care
for all.

Mission

Promote access to effective and affordable primary care and
preventive services for all, with special emphasis on
underserved populations in Vermont ar^ New Hampshire.

Bi-Sutc Staff Contact Ust

Infonnsdon
In 1986,6i-5tate Primary Care Association was formed by
health and social service leaders toensure access to care for
our most injlnerable citizens. Two health center executives
were at the helm of this endeavor. David Reynolds, former
executive director of Northern Counties Health Center in
Vermont and Ann Peters, former executive director of Lamprey
Health Care in New Hampshire. Our mission has endured for
34 years, with a steadfast commitment to improving access to
comprehensive primary and preventive health care for the
residents of both states.

Primary Care Associations (PCAs) are state or regional
nonprofit organizations that provide training and technical
assistance (T/TA) to safety-net providers. This T/TA is based on
statewide and regional needs to help health centers improve
programmatic, clinical, and financial performance and
operations. PCAs can help health centers and look-alikes plan
for growth and develop strategies to recruit and retain staff.

Department Contacts
Preskicnc/CEO
Tuj Scack Kuennirig, CNS, MS, R.N
(603)228-2830x112

Execucivc Vkc President, Finance and
Business Development
LoriH.Real.MHA
(603) 228-2830X114

Vice President ofPolicy and Strategy
GeorgbJ. Mahcras, Esq.

Bl-State Primary Care Associadon Members

New Himpshlre
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Inc. (FQHC)
Amoskeag Health (FQHC)
Charlestown Health Center (FQHC)
Community Health Access Network
Coos County Family Health Services, inc. (FQHC)
Greater Seactaast Community Health:

Families First Health and Support Center (FQHC)
Goodwin Community Health (FQHC)

Harbor Care Health and Wcllness Center. A Program of Har
Homes (FQHC Homeless Program)
Health Care for the Homeless Program (FQHC Homeless
Program)
HealthFirst Family Care Center (FQHC)
Indian Stream Health Center (FQHC)
Lamprey Health Care (FQHC)
Mid-State Health Center(FQHC)
NH Arpa Health Education Centers

Northern NH AHEC
Southern NH AHEC

North Country Health Consortium

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England
Weeks Medical Center (RHC)

White Mountain Community Health Center (FQHC Look-All

Vcffnofii

Battenkiil Valley Health Center (FQHC)
Community Health Centers of Burlington (FQHC)
Community Health Centers of the Rutland Region (FQHC)
Community Health Services of Lamoille Valley (FQHC)
Gifford Healthcare (FQHC)
Indian Stream Health Center (FQHC)
Little Rivers Health Care (FQHC)
Mountain Health Center (FQHC)
Northern Counties Health Care, Inc. (FQHC)
Northern Tier Center for Health (FQHC)
Planned Parenthood of Northern New England
Springfield Medical Care Systems, Inc (FQHC)
The Health Center (FQHC)
Vermont Area Health Education Centers

https:/^istatepca.o^g/About-Bi-State 3/26/2020
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Bi-SmE Primary Care Association

Serving Vermont & New Hampshire

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDIT/NG

STANDARDS AND UNIFORM GUIDANCE

June 30, 2019 and 2018

With Independent Auditor's Report



BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Bi-State PrirDary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated-balance sheets as of June 30. 2019
and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Afanage/nent's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free'from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Mnjuc • Mew Hnnipshifo • M.issochiiseiis • Connecticut • Vitciinin • Arizona
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material
respects, the financial position of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash fiowrs for
the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Change In Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and
Subsidiary adopted new accounting guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958). Our opinion Is not modified witti respect to this matter.

Other Matters
y'

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, (Jnifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and.was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciiing such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generaliy accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
19, 2019 on our consideration of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compiiance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care
Association. Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in
considering Bi-Slate Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Portland, Maine

September 19, 2019



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30. 2019 and 2018

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Investments

Other assets

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018

$ 1,818.166 $ 1.633,426
760,834 621,791
43.528 51.425

2,612,528 2,306,642

450,410
186,975
299.013

115.705
218,454
326.393

5 3.648.926 $ 2.967.194

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred compensation payable

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

$  421,261 $ 305,736

183,189 177,070
88.406 114.193

692,846 596,999

167.874 131.337

860,720 728,336

2.688.206 2.238.858

$ 3.548.926 $ 2.967.194

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-



Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2018

Operating revenue
Grant revenue

Dues Income

Other revenue

$ 3,878,926
344,627

428.674

$ 4,057,392
334,963
399.597

Total operating revenue 4.662.126 4 791.952

Expenses
Salaries and benefits

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

2,463,560
1,691,810

27.380

2.632.572

1.957,406
26.715

Total expenses 4.182.750 4.616.693

Operating income 469.376 175.259

Other revenue and (losses)
Equity in net loss of limited liability companies
Investment income

(26,153)
5.485

(27,152)
5.610

Total other revenue and (losses) (20.668) (21.542)

Excess of revenue over expenses 448,708 153,717

Change in unrealized gain on investments 640 301

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 449,348 154,018

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year 2 084.840

Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year
S 2.688.206 $ 2.238.858

The accompanying notes are an Integra! part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30. 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets without donor restrictions
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation

Equity in net loss of limited liability companies
Change in unrealized gain on investments
(Increase) decrease in the following assets;

Grants and other receivablies
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) In the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and acaued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Final distribution from limited liability companies

Net cash used by investing activities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash flow information
Change in deferred compensation investments

2P19 ?918

$  449,348 $  154.018

27,380 26.715
26,153 27,152

(640) (301)

(129,043) (46.082)
7,897 (9,668)

116,514 (4.729)
6,119 2.423

d2S.787i f22.715)

476,941 126.813

118,272
(452,336) (4.364)

41.863 .

1292.201) f4.364)

184,740 122,449

1.633.426 1.510.977

5 1.818.166 $ 1.633.426

$  36.537 $  36.073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bl-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2019 and 2018

Organization

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. (BSPCA) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in New
Hampshire. The Association's mission is to foster the delivery of primary and preventive health services
with special emphasis on the medically underserved, and its vision is to promote healthcare access for
all.

Subsidiary

Center for Primary Health Care Solutions. LLC (CPHCS) is a limited liability company formed pursuant
to the New Hampshire Limited Liability Company Act. CPHCS's primary purpose is to. provide
healthcare industry services and other industry-related consulting services. BSPCA is the sole member
of CPHCS.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BSPCA and its subsidiary, CPHCS
(collectively, the Association). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). which require Association to report information in the
financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets writhout donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management and
the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets writhout donor restrictions in the statements of operations and changes in net assets. The
Association has received no funds with donor restrictions.

.6-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

income Taxes

BSPCA is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a public
charity, the entity is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned In accordance
with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal income lax.
CPHCS is a limited liability company; however, for federal tax purposes, it is considered to t>e a
disregarded entity and. as such. CPHCS's income, expenses, losses, gains, deductions and
credits are reported on BSPCA's information retum. Management believes the services provided,
by CPHCS are consistent with BSPCA's lax-exempt purpose and its revenue does not constitute
unrelated business income.

Management has evaluated BSPCA's tax positions and concluded that there are no unrelated
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and money market accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible. Grant revenue is recognized as
revenue when expenditures are incurred. Grants whose restrictions are met wittiin the same year
as recognized are reported as grant revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily-determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value In the consolidated balance sheets. Investment incorne or
loss (including realized gains and losses on investments. Interest, and dividends) is included in the
excess of revenues over expenses unless the income or loss Is restricted by donor or law.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenue over
expenses.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as Interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.
As such, it is reasonably possible that changes In the values of investments v/ill occur in the near
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents uneamed grants or contracts received in advance of expenditure.

Excess of Revenue over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations include the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the excess of revenue over
expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on investments
other than trading securities.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958), which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The new ASU
marks the completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for-profit financial
reporting. Under the new ASU. net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three
category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified mode! that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The guidance simplified and clarified gifts to acquire property, plant, and equipment
and added new disclosures which highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make
otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial requirements. The ASU also
imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses. The Association has adjusted
the presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all
periods presented and had no impact on the Association's net assets, results of operations and
cash flows for the years June 30. 2019 and 2018.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through September 19, 2019, the date that the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Availability and Llauidltv of Financial Assets

The Association regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Association considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Association operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures.

The Association had working capital of $1,919,682 and $1,709,643 at June 30. 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The Association had average days cash and cash equivalents, less deferred revenue,
on hand of 150 and 120 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt, were as foliovrs as of June 30:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,818,166 $ 1.633,426
Investments 460,410 115,705
Grants and other receivables 760.834 621,791

Financial assets available to meet general _
expenditures within one year 6 3.919.410 »

The Association has an available $350,000 line of credit as described in Note 8.

The Association manages its cash available to meet general expenditures following three guiding
principles:

•  Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability;
•  Maintaining an average days cash on hand of 90 to 180 days; and
•  Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term

commitments and obligations will continue to t)e met, ensuring the sustainability of the
Association.

-9-
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

3. Grants and Other Receivables and Deferred Revenue

The Association provides services to promote healthcare access through numerous federal, state
and private grants. The Association has the following relating to grant and member services
activity:

2019 2016

Grant and memt>er services billed and not received $ 599,461 $ 545.436
Grant appropriations not billed 3,189,144 4,606,930
Grant deferred revenue not earned (3,037i771) f4,530,57§)

Grants and other receivables $ 750|8M $ 6211751

The Association received advance payments on certain grants with an unearned balance of
$88,406 and $114,193 at June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively.

4. Investments

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)
in an orderly transaction between market participants, and also establishes a fair value hierarchy
which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820
distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated bypbservable market data.

Level ,3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing ari asset or liability.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

-10-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

The fair market value of the Association's investments are measured on a recurring basis. The
tollovkfing table sets forth the Association's assets by level vwthin the fair value hierarchy:

June 30. 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 623 $ - $ • 6 ®23
U.S. Treasury Bills - 449.787 : 449i787

Total 9 623 t 449.787 $ 6 4S0.410

June 30. 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Mutual funds I 115.705 $

U.S. Treasury Bills are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets.

5. Investment In Limited Liability Companies

Community Health Accountable Care. LLC fCHAC)

The Association was one of nine members of this entity. The Association's investment in, CHAC
was reported on the equity method due to the Association's ability to exercise significant influence
over operating and financial policies. During the 2019 fiscal year, CHAG was terminated due to
changes in the regulatory environment in Vermont. The Association had no Investment in CHAG at
June 30, 2019. The Association's investment in GHAC amounted to $64,527 at June 30, 2018. The
Investment in GHAC is included in other assets on the balance sheet.

The Association provided management and administrative services to CHAG amounting to
$22,701 and $167,966 during 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is reported In other revenue in
the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

There was no amount due to the Association from GHAC at June 30, 2019. $36,054 was due to
the Association from CHAG for management and administrative services as of June 30. 2018. The
balance is reported in grants and other receivables.

Primary Health Care Partners. LLC fPHCPl

The Association is one of eight partners who have each made a capital contribution of $500. The
Association's investment In PHGP is reported using the equity method due to the Association's
ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies. The Association s
investment in PHGP amounted to $19,101 and $22,590 at June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The investment in PHGP is included in other assets on the balance sheet.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

The Association provided management and administrative services to PHOP amounting to
$114,093 and $55,818 for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018. respectively, which is
reported in other revenue in the statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Amounts due to the Association from PHOP for management and administrative services
amounted to $33,059 and $53,293 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The balance is
reported in grants and other receivables.

6, Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

2019 2018

Land S 50,000 $ 50,000
Buildings and improvements 430,136 430,136
Furniture and equipment ?9i194

Total cost 618,330 518.330

Less accumulated depreciation 219.317 191,937

Property and equipment, net $ ^99i011 $ 326,3^

7. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. As the
Association is a service organization, expenses are allocated between program services and
administrative support based on the percentage of program wages to total wages, with the
exception of grant pass-through expenses and subcontractors for program services which are
100% program in nature. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows for the years
ended June 30:

Program General and
Sen/ices Administrative Total

2019:
Salaries and benefits $ 1,638,959 $ 824,601 $ 2,463,660
Other operating expenses

Subrecipient grant pass through 721,304 - 721,304
Subcontractors for program services 397,093 - 397,093
Other contracted services 36,672 18,600 66,172
Occupancy 60,696 30,620 91,315
Other 283,769 143,157 426,926

Depreciation 18-199 9,191 2Zi380

$  3.166.691 $ 1.026.059 $ 4.182.750
Total
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
\

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Program General and
Services Administrative Total

2018:

Salaries and benefits $ 1,842,691 $ 789,861 $ 2,632,572
Other operating expenses

Subrecipient grant pass through 468,896 - 468,896
Subcontractors for program services 903,058 - 903,058
Other contracted services 49,023 20,917 69,940
Occupancy 71,386 30,458 101,844
Other 289,954 123,714 413,668

Depreciation 16-725

Total
S  3643.733 % 972.960 % 4.616.693

8. Line of Credit

The Association has a $350,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a local bank payable on
demand. The interest rate on the line of credit is Prime plus 1% with a 5% floor <6.50% at June 30,
2019). There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2019 and 2018, The line
of credit was not utilized at any time during the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018.

9. . Concentrations of Risk

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which exceeds federal depository
insurance limits. Because business needs frequently require funds in excess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Insured amount of $250,000, all funds In the Merrimack
County Savings Bank checking account are subject to a nightly sweep, which consists of high-yield
savings accounts in other FDIC insured institutions with.no individual institution exceeding FDIC
limits. This strategy is endorsed by the American Banking Association. The bank provides monthly
reporting.

10. Retirement Plans

The Association offers a defined contribution plan to eligible employees. The Association's
contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018 amounted to $84,903 and
$92,744, respectively.

The Organization has established a deferred compensation plan for eligible employees in
accordance with Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The fair value of the assets and
related liabilities for employee contributions to the plan are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet as deferred compensation investments and deferred compensation payable, respectively.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

11. Commitments

The Association leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various
dates through December 31, 2019. Total rental expense in 2019 and 2018 for all operating leases
was approximately $43,646 and $56,030, respectively. The future minimum lease payments under
the operating lease for the calendar year 2020 amounts to $29,862.

12. Related Party Transactions

The Association's Board of Directors Is composed of senior officials of organizations who are
members of the Association. The following is a schedule of services provided to and (by) these
organizations.

2019 2018

Members'dues $ 189,095 $ 174,778
Purchased services 97,702 35,432
Grant subcontractors (76,930) (258,183)
Grant subreciplent pass-through (285,296) (107,066)
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BJ-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOaATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIAR>

Sch«dul9 of Expondituros of Fodoral Awards

Year Ended June 30> 2019

Federal Grant/Pass-Thrcugh

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Contract

Number

Total

Federal

Exoendltures

Amount Passed

Through to
8ub-reciolent»

United Slates Deoartment of Health and Human Services:

0/mef;

Technical and Non-Finartdai Assistance to
Health Centers

Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
Federally-facilitated and State Partnership
Marketplaces

93.129

93.332

$  1.553.360

81.131

$

51,441

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural
Health Network Developmenl and Sman Health
Care Provider Quality Improvemeni Program 93.912 298.695 168.770

Pa.ssmroyoh;

Communltv Health Access Network

Rural Health Care Services Outreach. Rural
Health fretwork Development and Small Health
Care Provider Quality Improvement Program

. Total CFDA 93.912

93.912 -n/a 3.268

• 302.163 168,770

State of New Hamoshire Deoartment of Health and Human Services

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce
Activities 93.236 102-5000731-90080500 456.310 357.666

Slate of Vermont Deoartment of Health

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce
93.236 03420-72103 210.068 143,427

Total CFDA 93.236 666,378 501.093

Med/ceid duster

State of New Hamoshire Deoartment of Health and Human Services

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 102-5000731-47000144 41.756 •

Medical Assistance Program

Total Medicaid Cluster

93.778 102-5000731-90073000 65.710 -

107,466 -

state of New Hamoshire Deoartment of Health and Human Services

Maternal and CNId Health Services Block Grant to
the Slates 93.994 102-5000731-90004009 24.599 .

Slate of Vermont Deoartment of Health

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for
■  State. Territorial and Tribal Organizatlorts 93.898 03420-7208S 25.644 -

Heetth Center Proaram Cluster

Communltv Health Access Network

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and
Expanded Services Under the Health Center
Program

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards. Aii Programs

93.527 n/a ' 340.386

S  3.101.327 S  721.304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2019

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. De MInlmis'Indirect Cost Rate

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Association) has elected to use the 10-
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Association. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Association, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the
Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDfTING STANDARDS

Board of Directors ,
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accept^ auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2019, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 19, 2019.

internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Bi-State
Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's Internal control over financial reporting {internal control)
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Bl-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in Internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we .consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

f.l.Vmo • • Connoclu:"il . VA--;t \ iiijinin . Atiironji
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Board of Directors

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and. accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State
Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Poitland, Maine
September 19, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Si-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program for'the year ended June 30. 2019. Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management Is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal prograrris.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc.
and Subsidiary's major federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing,
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit Includes examining. On a test basis,
evidence about Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Bi-State Primary Care
Association. Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance.
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Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion on the Mt^or Federal Program

In our opinion. Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Manaaement of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bi-Stale Primary Care
Association Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements mat
could have' a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing
orocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose,of expressing an opinion on he
effectiveness of internal control over compliarice. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of coinp iance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or . detected and corrected on a «mely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combiriation of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
September 19, 2019
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BI^TATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2019

1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Intemal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Intemal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 510(a)
of Uniform Guidance?

Unmodified

□ Yes a No

□ Yes a None reported

□ Yes a No

□ Yes a No

□ Yes a None reported

Unmodified

□ Yes 0 No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.129 Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

2. Financial Statement Findings

None

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

$750,000

0 Yes □ No
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61 Elm Street. Montpetier, VT 05602

BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION
FY20 Board of Directors (July 2019-June 2020)

Board Chair:

Martha Halnon* CPC, CAPPM, CMPE
Chief Executive Officer
Mountain Health Center

74 Munsill Avenue, Suite 100
Bristol, VT 05443

Phone; (802)453-5028
phfllnnn@mountainhealthcenter.com

Board Vice Chair:

Gregory White, CPA, CHFP
Chief Executive Officer

Lamprey Health Care
207 South Main Street
Newmarket, NH 03857
Phone: (603) 659-2494

ywhite@lamprevhealth.org .

Board Immediate Past Chair:

Janet Laatsch, BSN, MBA
Chief Executive Officer

Goodwin Community Health
"311 Roiitc 108

Somcrsworth, NH 03878
Phone:(603)516-2550

j laatsch@yoodwinch.org

Board Secretary:

Dan Bennett

Chief Executive Officer

GifTord Health Care

44 South Main Street
Randolph, VT 05060
Phone: (802) 728-2304

dbennett@gifTordmed.org

Board Treasurer:

Edward Shanshala, II, MSHSA, MSEd
Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services

25 Mount Eustis Road

Littleton, NH 03561
Phone: (603) 444-2464

Rd.shanshala@achs-inc.org

Richard Silverberg, MSSW, LICSW
Chief Executive Officer

Health First Family Care Center
841 Central Street

- Franklin, NH 03235

Phone: (603) 934-0177
rsilverberg@healthfirstfamilv.org

Pamela Parsons

Executive Director

Northern Tier Center for Health

44 Main Street

Richford, VT 05476
Phone: (802)255-5561
ppflrsf>ns@nQtchvt.org

Kris McCracken

President/CEO

Amoskeag Health
145 Hollis,Street,

Manchester, NH 03101
Phone: (603)935-5210

kmccracken@flmoskeayhealth.org

Gail Auclair, MSM, BSN, RN
Chief Executive Officer

Little Rivers Health Care

PO Box 338; 131 Mill Street
Bradford, VT 05033

Phone: (802) 222-4637
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Scot McCray
President/CEO

Community Health Services of Lamoille Valley
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Suite 11, Morrisville, VT 05661
Phone: (802) 888-0900
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Kenneth Gordon
Chief Executive Officer

Coos County Family Health Services
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•  Operations Committee: Rick Silverberg (Ken Gordon after December)
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•  VT Government Relations Committee: Gail Auclair



Stephanie C. Pagliuca
525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH 03304

P. (603) 228-2830 Ext. Ill
SDafiliuca@blstateDca.org

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

• Able to work independently and as an effective team member
• Thoughtful, balanced approach to decision-making .... .
•  Ex|Krience in design, implementation and evaluation of programs and initiatives
•  Effective in building and managing partnerships
.  Strategic thinker; able to see the big picture yet attentive to detail
•  Strong oral and written communication skills

RELEVANT EMPLOYMENT
^  1994 to Present

Bi-State Primary Care Association
Bow, New Hampshire/Montpelier, Vermont

Director of Workforce Development & Recruitment 2003 to Present
Manaee and oversee Bi-State's Recruitment Center, a service focused on the recruiwent and retention
of nriLry care health professionals for rural and underserved areas of New Hampshire and Vermont.
WrUe manaee and implement grants from public and private foundations including the
Prima'rv Health Care Health Resources & Services Administration, Center for Medicare & MedicaidS ™ces tTe s^aws of and Vermont. Endowment for Health, attd DentaQuest
Partnership for Oral Health Advancement. Manage Bi-State's Leadership Development Program.
Manage staff and contractors.

1998 to 2003

SSd pl.n >. Ik. ""P. •'«» "

conferences and meetings on topics related to recruitment, including the national and local
affecting the recruitment of a qualified health care workforce.
^  , 1994 to 1998

sShed t^d rnaged a client base of 35+ organizations. Provided candidate referrals and technical
assistance on methods for successful recruitment of primary care providers. Maintained relationships
with orofessional associations and health professional training programs to facilitate recruitment ofr Id hSprofcTionals. Created and implemented annual marketing plan to attmct clinicians to the
sSf Wrorad'ropy and participated in the design of marketing collateral. Created displays and
exhibited at local and national trade shows.

.  1. VU March to October 1994Oxford Health Plan, Nashua, NH

" — health plan members regarding plan benefits, eligibility and medical
claims. Processed medical claims at 97% rate of accuracy.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts Degree, Communications
Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH

K



key administrative personnel

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Vendor Name;
Bi-State Primary Care Association

Name of Program/Service:
Oral Health Workforce Integration Y3

»«S55?BUDGET<(RERIO.Pj^tSg5^^^^^ EYi22jtammia
aisrynua

'••'I'was;

K mey.
Salary;:PaI<^by
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sl;i^'i'$Hi992:O0'.5.05%$98,862
Stephanie Paaliuca. Direr-tof| Recruitment Center
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budget request) HSJ^i?t'yr:$4i992.00i
VftTAI ftALAftl^S fNotto exceed Votal/Salary Wages, Line Item oi

title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Lisa M. Morris

Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Diyjsioiv OF PUBLIC health ser vices

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-4501 1-S00-852-334S Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.rh.gov

August 22. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House.
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health; to
enter into a sole source agreement with Bi-State Primary Care Association, (Vendor #166695),
525 Clinton Street; Bow/NH 03304 to provide Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative
Conferences, in an amount not to exceed $200,580. effective September 1. 2019 or upon date of
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30. 2022. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020. 2021, and 2022,
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
betweeri state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-90-902010-22150000HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, CDC ORAL HEALTH GRANT

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90060502 $66,580

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $67,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc ■  90080502 $67,000

Total $200,580

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Bi-State Primary Care Association (Bi-State) hosts
the annual Primary Care Conference and would be able to fully incorporate the Inter-Professional
Collaborative Conference into the planned agenda each year. The target population of primary
care, oral health, and behavioral health professionals from Federally Qualified Health Centers
(FQHCs) and Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) are all active annual
participants at the BiTState Primary Care Conference.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

The purpose of the Inter-Professlonal Collaborative Conference is to promote inter
professional collaboration, patient-centered care, and provider knowledge and awareness of the
impact of certain derttal conditions, including opioid use in dental procedures, on overall health.
The Department seeks, to increase provider knowledge of the most current opioid prescribing
guidelines, non-opioid pain management options, and best practice screening guidelines for
opioid addiction Previously a lack of knowledge amongst providers on the relative risks and
benefits of prescribing opioids for the management of acute and chronic pain has contributed
unfavorably to New Hampshire's opioid epidemic.

The Contractor will design, plan, coordinate, and implement an Annual Inter-Professional
Collaborative Conference. Through the Annual Inter-Professiona! Collaborative Conferences, the
Contractor will increase the knowledge of healthcare professionals in DHSPAs regarding how to
provide integrated and comprehensive care to people who are at risk for. or have substance use
disorders. The Department anticipates that irfiproving integrated and comprehensive care for
those at risk for substance use disorder will reduce the number of people newly diagnosed with
substance use disorder. Improving the coordination of care between healthcare professionals of
differing specialties for patients already diagnosed with substance use disorder reduces costs
and improves long-term patient outcomes.

The Contractor will ensure each Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative Conference is
available to approximately forty (40) health professionals, statewide.

Bi-State's current membership includes the majority of the target audience for the Inter-
Professional Collaborative Conference, which places them in an advantageous position to
achieve maximum attendance. Additionally, Bi-State was named in the Department's Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) grant application titled: "Strengthen Oral Health
Workforce Capacity to Prevent and Control Opioid Abuse in New Hampshire' to run a pre-
conferehce workshop on inter-iprofessional collaboration to address the overuse of opioids in
dental procedures.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the current lack of
collaborative knowledge between medical, dental and behavioral health professionals may lead
to delay in care, disease progression and an increase in healthcare expenses.

Population served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. US Department of Health and Human Services
Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Grants to States to Support Oral Health
Workforce Activities. CFDA #93.236, FAIN# T12HP31859

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

ctfully submitted.Res

Je frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for ci(ircn« to achieve health and independence.



Subject; Conference for Intemrofcssionals fSS»20l9-DPHS-2«t-CONFE^
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

■ Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Sujie of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

6i-Siate Primary Care Association, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

525 Clinton Street

Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-228-2830

.1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-22150000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$200,580

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor SignatoryContractor Signature

1.13 AcWowlcdgcment: State of NH .County of

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.1 1, and acknowledged that s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

Public or Justice of the PeaceBturc of No

fSeal]

. 13.2 Nome and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

K^g/zv&gAy, A/orA-g,Y
1.14 ^ttfAgency SigOTturi s ^

dAi.o
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

OPUS

1.16 Approval by the NIH. Department of Adminisu^tion, Division^of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

- // On:

1.18 Approvaiby the Goverwr and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVtCES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified In block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is Iricorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the ponies
hcreundcr, shall become cfTcciive on the dote the Governor
end Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor coi^cnccs the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be pcrfomtcd at the sole risk of the
ConUTJCior, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become cfTcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Conunctor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have (he right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. .

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B Nvhich is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the conuucl price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrfomrancc hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Conurictor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Conu-actor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
conb^, and notwitltsianding unexpected circuntstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hercunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conjicclion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal aulhorilics
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hcariog and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Conu^clor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTinnativc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive, Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depanment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Conirecior further a^ees to
permit the Stale or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7. 1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all -
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized lo do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months nfler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or oilier person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4
Contractor Initials ,

Dale



Agreement. This provision shall survive icrminaiion of ihis
Agreement.

7.3 The Coniraciing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefault hcrcundcr
("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreemcnu
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or ail, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving theConiroctor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Suite
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESyCONFIDENTIALlTV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 Ail data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 (^anfidcniialiiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fiflccn (15) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TH E STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent conlTactor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefiis, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in (his Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Stale. None of the Services shall be

subcohiracicd by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its ofTicers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its oiTicers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
ba.scd or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the

. Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immtinity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Suite. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Coniriicior shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obuiin and mainuiin in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
•of not less than $ I .(WO.OOOpcr occuTTcncc and $2,000,000
aggregate; and •
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to .subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described in subparagroph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. IDcpartmeni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Hampshire.
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Conlractor Initials

Date



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTlcer
ideniined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certincateCs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days.prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificaieCs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior svriiicn
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

IM By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensaiiort
15.7 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hcrcto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrccmcm may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Siaiclaw. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES.'The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only. and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, ompliiy or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the ottachcd EXHIBIT C arc incorporolcd herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccmcm, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, consilcutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Paged of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonels

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate a total of three (3) one-(1)-day Annual Interprofessional
Collaborative Conferences (AlCC) on the day preceding or following the Bi-State
annual Primary Care Conference in May of each year of the contract.

2.2. The Contractor shall design, plan, coordinate, and implement the AlCC for dental,
primary care, oral health, behavioral health, and substance use disorder treatment and

- recovery professionals in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) in
order to promote:

2.2.1. Interprofessional collaboration.

2.2.2. Patient-centered care.

2.2.3. Provider knowledge and awareness of the impact of substance use disorders
on overall health.

2.3. The Contractor shall promote the AlCC through outreach and marketing mechanisms
already in place to promote the annual Primary Care Conference in order to ensure a
minimum of forty (40) health professional attendees.

2.4. • The Contractor shall invite professionals from Bi-State Primary Care Association
member organizations within DHPSAs to attend the annual conferences.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure conferences include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Assistance to participants in obtaining proof of attendance documentation by
applying for approval of continuing education credits which includes, but Is not
limited to applying for approval of continuing medical and dental education
credits from both licensing boards, document attendance and generate
certificates of completion for relicensing.

2.5.2. The provision of continuing education credits no later than sixty (60) days after
completion of the annual conference.

2.5.3. Opportunities for collaborative learning during the conferences, which may
include, but not be limited to:

2.5.3.1. Breakout sessions.

2.5.3.2. Discussion panels.

Bl-SJate Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibll A Conlraclor Initials /\l
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New Hampshire Departinent of Health and Human Services
Conference for interprofesslonals

Exhibit A
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2.5.4. Assistance to participants in obtaining all necessary continuing education
credit approvals for relevant health professions in attendance including, but not
limited to those who work in the medical field, social work, nursing, and the
dental field.

2.6. The Contractor'shall coordinate with the manager of the conference venue to enisure
all logistical needs for the conference are met, which may include but are not limited
to:

2.6.1. Projectors.

2.6.2. Screens.

2.6.3. Microphones.

2.6.4. Speakers.

2.6.5. Table arrangements.

2.7. The Contractor shall distribute pre- and post-conference participant surveys regarding
the participants' knowledge and opinion of integrated services for individuals who have,
or are at risk of having, substance use disorders.

2.7.1. The Contractor shall create the surveys, which must be approved by the
Department before use.

2.7.2. Pre-conference surveys will be distributed and collected at the start of the
conference.

2.7.3. Post-conference surveys will be distributed and collected at the end of the
conference.

2.7.4. The results of the surveys will be sent to the Department \Arithin thirty (30) days
of the end of each conference.

2.8. The Contractor shall collect and report data on the AlCC to the Department's program
evaluator in order for the Department to evaluate the effectiveness of the conference,
in collaboration with the Contractor, for areas including, but not limited to:

2.8.1. Number of providers in attendance.

2.8.2. Types of professional disciplines in attendance.

2.8.3. Geographical area(s) represented by discipline.

2.9. The Contractor shall schedule a minimum of one (1) keynote speaker for each AlCC
from the speakers presenting at the Primary Care Conference that occurs directly prior
to or after the current AlCC.

2.10. The Contractor shall identify and recruit sponsors to offset the registration costs
associated with the AlCC in order to continue the AlCC post contract completion date.

2.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop a sustainability plan in
order to continue the AlCC post contract completion date that includes, but is not limited
to:

2.11.1. Meeting sponsorship goals.

8I-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Conlractor Initials —
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

Exhibit A

2.11.2. Identifying an agency to assist with coordinating logistics for future
conferences.

2.12. The Contractor shall contact the Department immediately for guidance in the event the
Contractor needs assistance with Implementing the contract.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an annual report on the effectiveness of the conferences
as described in Subsection 2.8, no later than sixty (60) days post conference.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports to the Department that Include, but are not.
limited to:

3.2.1. Total number of conference sponsors and total amount of sponsorship
received no later than February 1, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent
conferences.

3.2.2. Number of continuing education credits approved no later than March 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

.  3.2.3. Number of continuing education credits awarded no later than June 30, 2020
and annually thereafterfor subsequent conferences.

3.2.4.V Number of expected attendees no later than April 30, 2020 and annually
thereafter for subsequent conferences.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 10% of individuals report an increase in Icnowledge post
conference.

4.2. The Contractor .shall ensure 100% of eligible providers in attendance receive continuing
education credits upon completion of the conference.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the one (1) day conference occurs on the day preceding
or following the Bi-State's annual Primary Care Conference, in May of each year.

5.2. The Contractor shall schedule one (1) keynote speaker for the first conference no later
than January 30, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide aggregated data for annual conferences to the
Departrrient including, but not limited to:

5.3.1. Total number of conference sponsors and total amount of sponsorship
received no later than February 1, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent
conferences.

5.3.2. -Number of continuing education credits approved no later than March 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3.3. Number of continuing education credits awarded no later than June 30. 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3.4. Number of expected attendees no later than April 30, 2020 and annually
thereafter for subsequent conferences.

Bl-Slate Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Conlractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit B :

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds from US Department of Health and
Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Grants to
States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities, CFDA #93.236, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN), T12HP31859.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to a minimum of $36,850 annually.

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the annual $36,850 required match is in non-federal
contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA project
activities and goals related to Substance Use. Disorder (SUD) and be approved
by the Department.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of itemized matching funds in
accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR Part 75.306 no later
than June 15th annually.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. ■ . Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item in the Budgets.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

Bl-State Primary Care Association Exhibit 8 Conlractor Initials^C/fc--^'-^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

Exhibit B

6. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to dDhscontractbillina@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

10.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
Stale Fiscal Years', rriay be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Bl-State Primary Care Association Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

fiPPriAi PRnvisinMS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms pros/ided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by.the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which Hie shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that eacl;i applicant or re-applicani shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Conlraclor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Slate in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments vrtll be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on vrfnich the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual js eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Conlraclor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such'service. or at a
rale which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine thai the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in v«rhich event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repaynnent of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to t>e ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufTidently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
Iri-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records; Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of sen/ices.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US Genera! Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidentia) and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C-Sp«cUil Provisions . ContraclorInitials'

00/I3JI9 Pago 2 0(5 Date 'im



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Senrlces
Exhibit C

Nolwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the fotlowing.reporls at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of uniis provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review oflhe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with IheState
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AH materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHMS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contraclwithoul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all lav/s, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection vrilh the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facllllies shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on Hie. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdo)/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigln
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must taice reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Co^rTRACToR Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

t

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writingi in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors; DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functlon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functlon(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor, compliance
with those condilions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ExNbli C - Special Provisions Coniracior iniilsLs
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable.in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department-of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
ail such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Specisl Provisions Contr3cior Initials
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REViSiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P«37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT, is deleted In its entirety and Is replaced
as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, at! obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, If ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 9, DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY. is amended to add the following language:

9.4 During the performance of the Contractor's responsibilities under this Agreement,
Contractor shall not use, disclose, receive, collect, maintain, distribute, store, transmit or
in any way handle any confidential or sensitive information of any type, including but not
limited to protected health Information as defined In HIPAA 45 CRF Section 160.03;
personally identifiable Information; personal Information; or any type of Information that
may be used to determine, distinguish or trace an Individual's identity.

1.3. Section 10, TERMINATION. Is amended to add the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet Ihpse needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
■about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications In Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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1.4. Secllon 13. INDEMNIFICATION, is deleted in its entirety and Is replaced with the following
language:

13. INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall comply with any and all requirements of this Agreement; in the event that the
Contractor fails to comply with any such requirements, the State may pursue all available
remedies, at law and in equity, including without limitation any damages or losses it suffers from
Contractor's breach of this Agreement. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under
this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity.

1.5. Subsection 14.1, Paragraph 14.1.2 of Secllon 14, INSURANCE, is deleted in its entirety and is
replaced with the following language:

14.1.2. The Contractor is self-insured against special cause of loss coverage, covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 through self-insurance.

Subsection 14.3 of Section 14, INSURANCE, is deleted in Its entirety and is replaced with the
following language:

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identified In block 1'.9. or his or her
successor, a certificate(s) of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, certificates(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of Insurance required under
this Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each of the
insurance policies. The cerliricate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each certiricate(s) of insurance shall
contain a clause requiring the insurer to provide notice In accordance with the policy
provisions. The Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer identified In block 1.9.
or his or her successor, no less than ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation or
modification of the policy.

2. Revisions to Standard Exhibits

2.1. Exhibit I. Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement, is not applicable to
this Agreement and is deleted in Its entirety.

2.2. Exhibit K. OHHS Information Security Requirements, is not applicable to this Agreement and Is
dieteted in its entirety.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq:), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS .

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or svill continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing dnjg-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2, Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the woVkplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; .

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity .the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.A.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs l.i, 1.2, 1.3,1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date Nani^^
fi) 1 fC/tj o-Tie;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services'Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tide 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

y / 7- IH
Date' NamfiS. , •

Tille:U>

CLUD»HS'n07l3
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CERTtFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit'an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "flower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," 'primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded

.  from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is.erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good teith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certiflcstion Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
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Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who. is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year, period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a"public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it arid its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in &iis transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

W? h
Date ̂  Nam^ ^ ,

T
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminafing, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20Q0d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant.Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representalion of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibh G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Nam<:.\ - ^Date'

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of-facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as Ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name;

Date/ Namd\ ̂
Title;

CU/OHHVl 10713
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Pursuant to Exhibit C-1 of this Agreement, Exhibit I is not applicable.

Remainder of page intentionally lefl blank.

Contractor IniUsls.
Ooto.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITy AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the-following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the'funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

<riijil
Date ' Nam|P) ̂  ̂

Title:

Exhiba J - Certification Regardlnfl the Federal Funding Conlractor IniUats
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompDance L\ — /.-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants. sub*grants. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

\ NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

ClMJHHS/110713
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